

# Constitution of The National Malaya & Borneo Veterans Association Inc. Europe



## Index to the National Malaya & Borneo Veterans Association Constitution Inc. Europe

Association Title.....	2
Aims.....	2
Organisation .....	2
Membership.....	3
Admission, Rejection, Termination.....	4
Funds.....	5
Fees and Subscriptions.....	6
Branches.....	6
Meetings.....	7
Voting.....	8
Emblem & Awards.....	8

**Name**

1. **The name of the Association shall be the National Malaya & Borneo Veterans Association (The Association), abbreviated as the N.M.B.V.A. The motto shall be "Bono Animo Este" ("Be of Good Courage").**

**AIMS:**

2. **The Aims of the Association are:**

**A.** To bring together in true comradeship those who have served in Malaya, Borneo, Republic of Singapore, and Brunei Darussalam, during the Second World War, the Dutch East Indies Insurrection (Java, Sumatra), the Malayan Emergency and the Brunei Insurrection, the Borneo Indonesian Confrontation and thereafter in the above countries.

**B.** To remember with pride, respect and gratitude, those of all friendly Nationalities who made the supreme sacrifice in the line of duty for their Country and to ensure that those who fell and the Association are represented on the Day of Remembrance at home and abroad.

**C.** To promote the Association and its aims throughout the Commonwealth and other Nations.

To bring the work and aims of the Association to the public's awareness by promoting and supporting memorials and public occasions, and to seek affiliations with similar organisations.

**D.** To strengthen ties with Malaysia, the Republic of Singapore and Brunei Darussalam.

**E.** To hold an Association Annual General Meeting (AGM), Reunion Dinner and Remembrance Service.

**ORGANISATION:**

3. **The organisation, administration and control of the Association within the United Kingdom & Europe shall be by the National Executive Committee (the Committee) who shall be responsible for all matters of policy, finance and management strictly in accordance with this Constitution and shall:**

**A.** Consist of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, Membership Secretary, Assistant Secretary, three (3) Committee Members, Regalia Officer and Webmaster

Other symbolic or honorary posts may be created such as President or Vice President in recognition of outstanding service to the Association but only with the agreement of the membership at an AGM. Such posts shall not carry any executive powers and shall be reaffirmed at each AGM.

**B.** Be elected annually by vote at the AGM but shall have the power to fill, by co-option, any vacancy that may occur or any new post that may be required during their term of office, provided always that the selection in the first instance shall be made from those offering themselves for election at the AGM or by a volunteer. Such selection shall be made in order of voting and with the consent of any such Member being obtained before the appointment is made, the co-option shall cease at the next AGM.

**C.** Supervise all Branches, the ordering, purchasing and distribution of the Association's regalia, AGM or any Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM), and all matters Membership and this Constitution.

**D.** Make Orders and Regulations as and when necessary, which shall be binding on every Member of the Association and which shall be reported upon at the AGM. The Committee does not have the power to determine all questions and disputes as to the construction or interpretation of this Constitution and therefore all such matters shall also be reported to the Members at the AGM. This constitution may be amended at any AGM or EGM provided that three (3) months notice has been given to each branch to allow them to communicate such amendments to its Members. Ordinary members can, if they so wish then respond to the National Secretary who shall take those views into account.

**E.** All nominations for election to the committee, signed by the Proposer, Seconder and Nominee, shall be received by the National Secretary no later than Ninety (90) days before the AGM. Proposers and Seconders may be required to submit written statements in support of their Nominee who may decline or withdraw their nomination for any reason up to the time voting takes place.

#### **MEMBERSHIP:**

#### **4. Membership of the Association shall be as follows:**

**A.** The Membership shall be all those persons whose names are present on the Membership Database or Register of the Membership Secretary.

**B.** A Database or Register shall also be kept of those Members who are deceased, have resigned or with whom the Association has lost touch.

**C.** All personal and Service details shall be protected and their security is the sole responsibility of the Membership Secretary.

**D.** Members shall be classified as Ordinary, Associate, or Honorary.

**E.** Ordinary Membership is open to all those who have served in H.M. Forces, Commonwealth Forces, Auxiliary Forces, Saint John Ambulance Brigade, Merchant Navy and the Civil Service in the areas covered by the Association.

**F.** Associate Membership is open to all those who have served in H.M. Forces anywhere, the spouses, widows, widower's, children, and grandchildren of those who are Ordinary Members or would have qualified for Ordinary Membership and

all civilians who were held captive during the Japanese Occupation to the qualifying countries.

**G.** Honorary Membership shall be proposed by an Ordinary Member for any person not otherwise qualified to apply for Ordinary or Associate Membership and in recognition of special services rendered to the Association, proposals shall be sent to the Membership Secretary for consideration by the Committee. Honorary Members are not permitted to hold office at any level and do not have voting rights but they are not required to pay subscriptions.

**H.** Every Member shall inform the National Membership Secretary or their Branch Secretary of any change of address, including telephone number, all notices required to be given to any Member shall duly be deemed to have been given if sent to the address present on the National Database.

**I.** The Membership Database or Register shall be accessible at all reasonable times by any Member who applies to the Membership Secretary  
Subject to conditions as laid out in the Data Protection Act

**J.** The Association must comply at all times with freedom of Information and Data Protection Act

#### **ADMISSION, REJECTION, TERMINATION.**

##### **5. The regulation of Membership shall be as follows:**

**A.** The Initial Application for membership of the NMBVA using the official completed membership application form, to be sent to the National Treasurer with a payment for the current Association annual subscription of £4 plus an amended Association joining fee of £3.

Postal Areas North and South members will continue to submit an annual renewable Subscription of £7 as they are not subject to pay branch contributions

**B.** After verification of the details the Membership Secretary shall forward an official N.M.B.V.A. Membership card to the new Member who shall then be entitled to all the privileges of Membership. If the Member resides within an area of an established Branch the Membership Secretary shall allocate the Member to that Branch unless requested otherwise.

**C.** Where there is any doubt as to the authenticity of the details contained on the Application, the Membership Secretary shall request the Applicant to provide all necessary evidence to qualify entitlement to Membership. If reasonable doubt still exists the Membership Secretary shall inform the Applicant that the matter will be brought up before the Committee for discussion and that the decision will be forwarded within fourteen days (14) of being reached. If the decision is rejected then the Applicant has the right to appeal.

**D.** A Member may resign at any time by giving notice in writing to the Membership Secretary, the Branch Chairman or the National Chairman.

If a Member fails to pay their Annual Subscription within (3) months (90) days of the due date they shall be deemed, by their conduct to have resigned. Branches shall

be given discretion regarding their own Members for reasons of hardship, illness or reward.

**E.** If a Member fails to comply with any part of this Constitution or shows conduct prejudicial or injurious to the interests of the Association then the National Committee shall consider whether or not that Membership should be terminated.

**F.** Any Member who receives a notice of termination or has received a vote of no confidence and any person who has had a rejection of application for Membership may, within fourteen (14) days of receiving written notification, lodge an appeal in writing to the National Secretary.

**G.** On receipt of a notification to appeal the National Secretary shall, within (60) days, convene an Appeal Panel of (10) Ordinary Members. No more than two (2) from any branch will be appointed of which (1) one member will be elected as chairman by members of the panel

The appellant has the right to state his case

The body (i.e. the NEC) seeking termination of membership has the right to give cause for such termination.

The appeal result will be determined by a majority vote of the panel

Such decisions being final.

**H.** The Member or Applicant has the right to defend and the Committee to present their respective cases. The appeal shall be determined by a majority vote of the Appeal Panel Jury only, such decision being final.

**I.** Regalia may only be purchased and worn by members

## **FUNDS**

### **6. Control of the Association Funds shall be as follows:**

**A.** All funds, belonging to the Association shall be kept in the name of the Association in a Bank, Savings Bank, or Building Society or may be invested under such conditions as the Committee decide. All cheques and withdrawal slips on the account shall be signed by the Treasurer and the Chairman or Vice-Chairman.

**B.** Proper accounts shall be kept and maintained either on a database, written or printed showing correctly the financial affair of the Association.

**C.** All single expenditures above Five hundred pounds, (£500) must be approved by the Committee.

**D.** The purchasing of all Association regalia will be carried out by the Regalia Officer and/or Treasurer with discounts offered to Branches as decided by the Committee.

**E.** A full audit of the National accounts shall be carried out by an approved auditor as soon as is practical at the end of the Association's financial year. The official year of the Association shall be from the first day (1<sup>st</sup>) day of September to the Thirty First (31<sup>st</sup>) day of August.

**F.** The Association accounts may be audited by a sub Committee of Ordinary Members, who will present their report at the A.G.M.

**G.** The funds, assets and property of the Association shall be applied solely in the promotion of the aims as set out in this Constitution. In the event of the Association being dissolved, English Law shall prevail. This means that the funds, assets or property shall not be distributed, transferred or paid directly or indirectly to any Member or Organisation without the prior consent of the Committee and then only after the Treasurer has honoured all debts, out of pocket expenses, money lent, charges for goods and services or rent for premises.

In the event of the Association being dissolved all remaining funds will be transferred to an appropriate Veterans Association.

## **FEES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS**

### **7. The regulations of fees and subscriptions shall be as follows:**

**A.** Subject to any alterations which may be decided by the Committee, the Membership Fee (the fee) and the Annual Subscription (the subscription) shall be decided at the A.G.M.

**B.** The fee shall be charged each new Ordinary or Associate Member and shall be due on joining the Association. The responsibility for collecting these charges shall rest with the Treasurer.

**C.** National Subscriptions shall be determined by the yearly running costs of the Association, however, Branch Subscriptions shall be at the discretion of the Members of that particular Branch.

## **BRANCHES:**

### **8. The creation and control of Branches shall be as follows:**

**A.** Branches may be set up throughout the United Kingdom, and Europe with the granting of a Warrant from the Committee and provided that there is a minimum of five (5) Ordinary Members residing within the area, three (3) of who are prepared to stand for election to the offices of Branch Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer. The suspension or withdrawal of the Warrant and dissolution of any existing Branch shall be at the discretion of the Committee.

**B.** Branches are to be self financing by setting and collecting their own Branch Fees and be responsible for the management of their Membership, the Branch accounts, public relations and communicating with the Committee.

Branches will remain responsible for submitting the current annual subscription of £4 per registered member to the National Treasurer with members names who has paid

Audited copies of the Branch accounts may be forwarded to the National Treasurer at the discretion of the Branch.

**C.** Applications for Branch Membership outside the Branch area may be accepted solely at the request of such Members, no attempt will be made by any Branch or individual Member, to exclusively recruit other existing Branch Members.

- D. Branches may establish their own local rules those rules shall not negate any part of this Constitution.
- E. Branches shall not sell Association regalia at a price that is higher than that stipulated by the Committee.

## **MEETINGS**

### **9. Meetings of the Association will be held as follows:**

#### **A. Branch Delegates Meetings**

Shall be called at the discretion of the NEC

Each Branch will be entitled to have 1 (one) voting delegate to represent them at the meeting.

The name of the representative shall be sent to the National Secretary at least 28 days prior to the meeting this to include matters the branch wishes him to raise.

Questions must come from the Branch and not individuals.

**B.** The Association shall hold an A G M during the month of October primarily to afford Members the opportunity to submit Motions for other Members consideration, hold a Reunion Dinner and Remembrance Service. The A G M is the Meeting for individual members of the Association, accordingly. Remits submitted or Motions tabled on behalf of a Branch shall not be accepted.

**C.** The venue and date of the A.G.M. will be suggested at the previous Meeting and be governed by demand and availability. The Committee is totally responsible for arranging the venue, date and programme and the finance, thereby retaining the right to change the venue for any reason they see fit.

**D.** The quorum for an A.G.M. shall be no less than two thirds (2/3rds) of those Ordinary Members attending the venue. The quorum for a Committee Meeting will be no less than thirty percent (30%) of the full Committee.

**E.** The National Secretary shall call an Extraordinary General Meeting (E.G.M.) within sixty (60) days of receipt of written request signed by no less than one hundred (100) Ordinary Members or by a resolution of the Committee both of which shall state the reason for calling the E.G.M.

Notice thereof shall be posted to all Branches) not less (42) forty two days before the Meeting.

**F.** A record of Minutes shall be taken of all Association Meetings.

**G.** The Chairman or an appointed representative shall chair all Association Meetings and shall have the power to evict person who is abusive or who persistently disrupts the Meeting. The Chair shall have the casting vote and shall control the addressing of the Meeting by Members.

**H.** A Motion of No Confidence against a person holding Office within the Association shall if carried, be investigated by the NEC.

**VOTING:****10. Voting and the tabling of Motions shall be conducted as follows:**

- A.** The Chair shall ascertain the decision of the Ordinary Members present by a show of hands; a simple majority shall win the vote. There shall be no secret ballots, there shall be no proxy votes, and there shall be no block votes.
- B.** Any matter to be discussed which requires a decision to be made by the Members shall be tabled as a Motion. All Remits, duly Proposed and Seconded shall be presented to the Committee ninety days (90) before the A.G.M. to enable consideration for tabling as Motions, all other matters shall be brought up in Any Other Business. Remits not received by the due date shall not be thus read at the Meeting and if both Proposer and or Secunder do not attend the meeting they shall have their Motions withdrawn.
- C** Motions being debated are subject to the following:
- a. The Proposer may speak on the motion for four (4) minutes.
  - b. The Secunder may speak on the motion for two (2) minutes.
  - c. Others may speak on the motion (for or against) for four (4) minutes.
  - d. Any Amendments to the Motion shall be voted on first,
  - e. The Proposer shall have the right to reply before the Motion is voted on.
  - f. All Motions shall be voted on unless withdrawn.
  - g. A Motion may only be withdrawn with the approval of the Proposer.

**EMBLEM:**

- 11.** The Association Emblem is the Badge of the Association and may only be worn by Ordinary and Associate members on the appropriate blazer approved regalia. No alteration or change in design or presentation shall be made without the express permission of the Members at an A.G.M. No Member is permitted to use the Emblem for personal gain or favour.

**AWARD CERTIFICATES:**

- 12.** A member may be nominated for a certificate of merit in recognition of outstanding service to the Association. Nominations in writing must be sent directly to the National Secretary for approval by the NEC. When approved a Certificate will be signed by the appropriate Association Officers and presented at an arranged venue.